
Woodbury County Board of Adjustment Meeting Agenda - Page 1 of 1 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

WOODBURY COUNTY 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Monday, February 2, 2026 at 5:00 PM
The Woodbury County Board of Adjustment will hold a public meeting on Monday, February 2, 2026 at 5:00 PM 
in the Board of Supervisors’ meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas 
Street, Sioux City, IA to conduct business and public hearings.  Please use the 7th St. entrance.  Public access to 
the conversation of the meeting will also be made available during the meeting by telephone. Persons wanting to 
participate in the public meeting may attend in person or call: (712) 454-1133 and enter the Conference ID: 742 
346 123# during the meeting to listen or comment.  It is recommended to attend in person as there is the 
possibility for technical difficulties with phone and computer systems. 

AGENDA

1 CALL TO ORDER 

2 ROLL CALL 

3 ELECTION OF CHAIR OF THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FOR 2026 (ACTION ITEM) 

4 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR OF THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FOR 2026 (ACTION ITEM) 

5 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA (INFORMATION ITEM) 

6 APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) MINUTES (ACTION ITEM) 

7 ITEM(S) OF ACTION / BUSINESS 

» PUBLIC HEARING (ACTION ITEM): CONSIDERATION OF A VARIANCE APPLICATION 
FROM KEVIN ALONS FOR PROPERTY OWNED BY KEVIN AND NGU ALONS FOR A 
REDUCTION OF CORNER SIDE YARD AND/OR FRONT YARD SETBACKS AND RELIEF 
FROM ACCESSORY BUILDING PLACEMENT AND HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS ON PARCEL 
#874733377004. THE PROPERTY ADDRESS IS 140 GALLAND ST., SALIX, IA 51052. 

SUMMARY: The variance application, filed by Kevin and Ngu Alons, requests approval to construct a two-story accessory building 
(approximately 24' x 30', roughly 28' high and subject to change) with vehicle storage on the main floor and a wood shop above. The 
applicant seeks relief from Section 3.04 (Zoning District Dimensional Standards) of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance to reduce the 
Suburban Residential (SR) District’s 15-foot corner side yard and/or 25-foot front yard setbacks, and from Sections 4.12.3 and 4.12.4 
(Accessory Buildings) related to placing an accessory structure in front of the principal structure and height limitations when the accessory 
structure may exceed the principal structure’s height. The proposed building may be located within the corner side and/or front yard setbacks 
and potentially up to or on the southwest lot line or right-of-way line. The parcel is Lot 4 of Galland’s Lakeview Second Sub-Division (Parcel 
#874733377004), a 0.54-acre lot in Section 33, T87N R47W (Liberty Township), located on the east side of Galland Street and the 
northwest side of 275th Street in the Suburban Residential (SR) Zoning District. The applicant asserts that the lot’s triangular shape, existing 
house, garage and driveway locations, septic and well placement, and unusually large right-of-way areas uniquely constrain building 
placement and justify the requested variances. Owner/Applicant: Kevin and Ngu Alons, 140 Galland St., Salix, IA 51052.

8 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA (INFORMATION ITEM) 

9 STAFF UPDATE (INFORMATION ITEM) 

10 BOARD MEMBER COMMENT OR INQUIRY (INFORMATION ITEM) 

11 ADJOURN (ACTION ITEM) 

1



PACKET CONTENTS 

PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES – DRAFT 

PUBLIC HEARING (ACTION ITEM): CONSIDERATION OF A VARIANCE 
APPLICATION FROM KEVIN ALONS FOR PROPERTY OWNED BY KEVIN AND 
NGU ALONS FOR A REDUCTION OF CORNER SIDE YARD AND/OR FRONT 
YARD SETBACKS AND RELIEF FROM ACCESSORY BUILDING PLACEMENT 
AND HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS ON PARCEL #874733377004. THE PROPERTY 
ADDRESS IS 140 GALLAND ST., SALIX, IA 51052. 

2

3

10



1 

Minutes - Woodbury County Board of Adjustment – October 6, 2025 

The Board of Adjustment meeting convened on the 6th of October 2025 at 5:00 PM in the Board of Supervisors’ 
meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse.  The meeting was also made available for 
public access via teleconference.   

Meeting Audio: 
For specific content of this meeting, refer to the recorded video on the Woodbury County Board of Adjustment 
“Committee Page” on the Woodbury County website: 

- County Website Link: 
o https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/board_of_adjustment/ 

- YouTube Direct Link: 
o  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=hflmByCowpc

BA Members Present: Daniel Hair, Pam Clark, Larry Fillipi, Tom Thiesen 
BA Members Absent: Doyle Turner 
County Staff Present: Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton 
Public Present: Brian Struve 

1. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 Time: 5:00 PM  
 Action: Chair Daniel Hair called the meeting to order, confirming that all Board of Adjustment members 

were present.  
 Details: The meeting was audio-recorded, and minutes were to be prepared. Attendees were requested to 

silence cell phones and complete the attendance sheet. Chair Hair reviewed the board’s procedures, 
including handling public hearings, staff reports, applicant presentations, public comments, and board 
deliberations. He outlined the process for motions, votes, and appeals (within 30 days to a court of record), 
emphasizing respectfulness, avoidance of repetitious or irrelevant comments, and the need to disclose any 
ex parte communications prior to deliberations. No ex parte communications were reported. 

2. Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
 Action: Chair Hair opened the floor for public comments on non-agenda items. 
 Outcome: No public comments were received. 

3. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 
 Agenda Item: Approval of the minutes from the September 3, 2025, special meeting. 
 Action:

o Motion: Pam Clark moved to approve the minutes from the previous meeting. 
o Second: Tom Thiesen seconded the motion. 
o Discussion: No further discussion was held. 
o Vote: Unanimous approval (all present voted “Aye”). 

 Outcome: The minutes were approved as presented. 

4. Public Hearing (Action Item): Consideration of a Variance Application from the Kaylea A. Struve Revocable 
Living Trust (Kaylea Struve) who requests a reduction of the required setback in Section 3.04 of the Woodbury 
County Zoning Ordinance from 100 ft to 90 ft (a 10 ft reduction) or to a greater or lesser reduction as necessary to 
accommodate the project (within a range of 1 to 15 ft) on Parcel #884502400003. The property address is 1661 
Hancock Ave., Moville, IA 51039. 

 Summary (from Agenda and Packet): The variance application, filed by Kaylea A. Struve Revocable 
Living Trust, seeks approval to construct a new addition to the north side of the existing house that aligns 
with the existing front façade, requesting a reduction of the required setback in Section 3.04 of the 
Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance from 100 ft to 90 ft (a 10 ft reduction) or to a greater or lesser 
reduction as necessary to accommodate the project (within a range of 1 to 15 ft, likely under 10 ft). The 
property owner has filed this variance application to seek relief from Section 3.04 of the Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance pertaining to “Zoning District Dimensional Standards” which requires a minimum front 
yard setback of 100 feet in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District. The proposed addition size is 
approximately 16’ x 28’ and subject to changes. The property is located on a 5.47 acre lot identified as 

3



2

Parcel #884502400003 and is located in Section 2 in T88N R45W (Moville Township) and in the 
Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District. The property is located about 1.5 miles southeast of Moville 
on the west side of Hancock Ave. Owner/Applicant: Kaylea A. Struve Revocable Living Trust, 800 Paige 
Pl., Moville, IA 51039.  

 Public Hearing Opened: Chair Hair opened the public hearing.  
 Staff Report: Dan Priestley, Zoning Coordinator.  

o Details: Priestley summarized the application, explaining the request for a setback reduction from 
100 feet to 90 feet (or within 1-15 feet) to allow a home addition that aligns with the existing 
structure. He noted the project aims to modernize the home and that the 100-foot setback is 
problematic due to the existing house's position (built historically before the ordinance). Using 
Beacon GIS for demonstration, Priestley showed the property's layout relative to Hancock Avenue, 
highlighting a wider-than-typical right-of-way (about 40 feet instead of 33 feet), which results in the 
house being at approximately 93-94 feet from the road. The requested range provides flexibility to 
square the addition with the existing façade without significant constraint. Priestley emphasized 
that this is a reasonable request given the widened right-of-way and rural setting, aligning with 
variance criteria under recent Iowa Code amendments focusing on practical difficulties. No written 
concerns were received; staff recommended approval, as the request satisfies criteria for no public 
impacts, hardship due to pre-ordinance constraints, and minimal relief needed. He suggested a 
motion worded as on page 6 of the packet for flexibility.  

 Applicant Presentation: Brian Struve, 800 Paige Pl., Moville, IA (representing the applicant).  
o Details: Struve explained that the addition would not encroach closer to the road than the existing 

house; it would align evenly with the current façade. The proposed addition is 16 feet by 28 feet on 
the north side. He confirmed working with builders to ensure feasibility.  

 Board Questions and Discussion During Presentation: Priestley added that the request is 
straightforward, far from aggressive setbacks (e.g., not within 20 feet), and the 1-15 foot range provides 
practical flexibility for alignment. He noted it fits "practical difficulty" criteria, is not contrary to public interest, 
and does not amend the ordinance de facto. The board discussed motion wording, confirming flexibility up 
to 15 feet (e.g., reducing to 85-90 feet) based on the site plan. No other questions were raised.  

 Public Comments: No public comments were received, either in person or via telephone. Priestley 
entered into the record a verbal inquiry from neighbor Darlow Janssen, who asked about the project and 
confirmed it was not near property lines; no opposition was expressed.  

 Public Hearing Closed:  
o Motion: Tom Thiesen moved to close the public hearing.  
o Second: Larry Fillipi seconded the motion.  
o Discussion: No further discussion was held.  
o Vote: Unanimous approval (all present voted “Aye”).  
o Outcome: The public hearing was closed.  

 Board Deliberation:  
o Discussion: The board discussed the application's straightforward nature, noting it as one of the 

easiest variances in recent memory, exemplifying the board's purpose for such minor, practical 
relief. No concerns were raised about public interest, hardship, or precedent.  

 Decision:  
o Motion: Pam Clark moved to approve the variance application by Kaylea A. Struve Revocable 

Living Trust for Parcel #884502400003 at 1661 Hancock Ave., Moville, IA, reducing the front yard 
setback from 100 feet to 90 feet or minimally within 1-15 feet under Section 3.04.  

o Second: Larry Fillipi seconded the motion.  
o Discussion: No further discussion was held; Priestley noted post-approval paperwork would take a 

few days, including coordination with the chair for signature, after which building permits could 
proceed.  

o Vote: Unanimous approval (all present voted “Aye”).  
 Outcome: The variance was approved as requested. The permit will be issued upon administrative 

resolution preparation; staff will coordinate with the applicant, 

4



3

5. Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
 Action: Chair Hair opened the floor for additional public comments. 
 Outcome: No comments were received. 

6. Staff Update 
 Presenter: Dan Priestley, Zoning Coordinator.  
 Details: Priestley provided a brief update on new Iowa legislation affecting elected and appointed officials, 

requiring training on the Sunshine Law (public meetings, notifications, and board interactions) for new 
members within approximately 90 days of taking office. Existing members (including reappointments) are 
grandfathered but encouraged to participate. Training is free, 1.5-2 hours, and covers curriculum from 
institutions like Iowa State; Priestley is exploring internal delivery options. Failure to complete could result 
in fines. He distributed information from the Iowa Public Information Board and requested it be received into 
the record. Additionally, he noted the Board of Supervisors' upcoming public hearings at 4:30 PM on 
accessory dwelling units and public service garages (starting October 7, 2025, over three weeks). The 
county is in the open application stage for board positions, with ads in local papers. 

 Action on Distributed Information: 
o Motion: Tom Thiesen moved to receive the Iowa Public Information Board document into the 

record.  
o Second: Pam Clark seconded the motion.  
o Discussion: No further discussion was held.  
o Vote: Unanimous approval (all present voted “Aye”). 
o See appendix.

 Board Inquiry: No questions were raised. 

7. Board Member Comment or Inquiry 
 Details: No board member comments or inquiries were made. 

8. Adjournment 
 Action:

o Motion: Pam Clark moved to adjourn the meeting. 
o Second: Larry Fillipi seconded the motion. 
o Discussion: No further discussion was held. 
o Vote: Unanimous approval (all present voted “Aye”). 

 Outcome: The meeting was adjourned at approximately 5:18 PM. 

Appendix – Received Material. See subsequent pages.

5



4

6



5

7



6

8



7

9



WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax)
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                        Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk

dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

APPLICATION DETAILS PROPERTY DETAILS TABLE OF CONTENTS

Owner/Applicant(s): Kevin and Ngu Alons / Kevin Alons
Application Type: Variance
Zoning District: Suburban Residential (SR)
Total Acres: 0.54
Current Use: Residential
Proposed Use: Residential Shed
Pre-application Meeting: December 16, 2025
Application Date: January 5, 2026
Stakeholders Notification Date: January 13, 2026
Legal Notice Date: January 22, 2026
Neighbors’ (500’) Letter Date: January 16, 2026
Board of Adjustment Public Hearing Date: February 2, 2026

Parcel(s): 874733377004
Township: T87N R47W (Liberty)
Section: 33
Subdivision: Galland’s Lakeview Second-Subdivision, Lot 4
Zoning District: SR
Floodplain District: Zone X (Not in floodplain)
Address: 140 Galland St., Salix, IA 51052.
Description: Lot Four (4) in Block Two (2), Galland's Lakeview 
Second Sub-Division, in the County of Woodbury and State of 
Iowa. Sec 33-87-47

• APPLICATION DETAILS 
• PROPERTY DETAILS 
• VARIANCE DESCRIPTION 
• LOCATION MAP 
• SITE PLAN 
• STAFF RECOMMENDATION • 
APPLICATION 
• REVIEW CRITERIA 
• LEGAL NOTICE 
• PROPERTY OWNER NOTIFICATION 
• STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS 
• PARCEL REPORT 
• COUNTY ZONING MAP
 • SOIL MAP 
• SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA 
(SFHA) 
• VARIANCE REGULATIONS — 
WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING  
• STATE OF IOWA VARIANCE 
CHANGES

VARIANCE APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

Pursuant to Section 335 of the Code of Iowa, the Woodbury County Board of Adjustment will hold a public hearing to consider a variance application from 
Kevin Alons for property owned by Kevin and Ngu Alons at 140 Galland St., Salix, IA 51052. The applicant seeks approval to construct a two-story accessory 
building (approximately 24' x 30', roughly 28' high and subject to change) within the corner side yard setback and/or front yard setback, potentially up to or on 
the southwest lot line or the right-of-way line, with vehicle storage on the main floor and a wood shop above. Relief is requested from Section 3.04 (Zoning 
District Dimensional Standards) of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance to reduce the Suburban Residential (SR) District’s 15-foot corner side yard and/or 
25-foot front yard setbacks, and from Sections 4.12.3 and 4.12.4 (Accessory Buildings) governing accessory structure placement in front of the principal 
structure and height limitations when the accessory structure could exceed the principal structure’s height. The parcel is Lot 4 of Galland’s Lakeview Second 
Sub-Division (Parcel #874733377004), a 0.54-acre lot in Section 33, T87N R47W (Liberty Township), located on the east side of Galland Street and the 
northwest side of 275th Street and in the Suburban Residential (SR) Zoning District. The applicant contends the lot’s triangular shape, the existing house, 
garage and driveway locations, septic and well placement, and unusually large right-of-way areas uniquely constrain building placement and justify the 
requested variances. Applicant/Owner(s): Kevin and Ngu Alons, 140 Galland St., Salix, IA 51052.

LOCATION MAP SITE PLAN EXCERPT

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The application has merits under the updated Iowa Code § 335.15(4), which should guide the Board's decision. The applicant's emphasis on practical di�iculties 
from unique physical features (triangular shape, oversized right-of-ways, pre-existing elements) enables beneficial use of the property for an accessory structure, 
without self-creation or neighborhood disruption. While the ordinance's "economic hardship" criterion is not ideally met (lacking financial impact evidence), the 
new law's focus on "practical di�iculties" and substantial justice fits well, as literal enforcement would hinder reasonable residential enhancements. The minimal 
public impacts (limited visibility, no congestion/safety issues) ensure it's not contrary to public interest, observing the ordinance's spirit (e.g., setbacks in Section 
3.04, Accessory Buildings in Section 4.12). Based on the site plan, the proposal appears optimal and non-intrusive. Approval is warranted. Denial risks 
inconsistency with state law's intent to provide relief for dimensional constraints in specific cases such as this one.

10



APPLICATION

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



SECTIONS OF ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO VARIANCE REQUEST

Sections 3.04, 4.12.3 and 4.12.4 

REVIEW CRITERIA 1: (Section 2.02.8F1[A])

In terms of the variance application process, it is the duty of the Board of Adjustment to determine that the granting of the variance will not be contrary to the 
public interest or the general intent and purpose of this title in it that it: 

1. ADVERSELY IMPACTS NEARBY PROPERTIES;

2. SUBSTANTIALLY INCREASES CONGESTION OF PEOPLE, BUILDINGS OR TRAFFIC;

3. ENDANGERS PUBLIC HEALTH OR SAFETY;

4. OVERBURDENS PUBLIC FACILITIES OR SERVICES OR;

5. IMPAIRS THE ENJOYMENT, USE OR VALUE OF NEARBY PROPERTY.

Applicant Response:

1. Explain below why granting the variance will not adversely impact nearby properties:
- The proposed building structure will only be visible to one or two neighbor’s property and even though the location is proposed to be up to the 

right-of-way line, this line is at least 20 feet farther from the normal customary distance of 33 feet from the center of the adjacent gravel road (per 
the Woodbury County engineers o�ice)

2. Explain below why granting the variance will not substantially increase congestion of people, buildings or tra�ic:
- The proposed building site, size, location will have impact on tra�ic flow outside of my property and will not a�ect any tra�ic on my property.

3. Explain below why granting the variance will not endanger public health or safety: 
- The building will have absolutely impact on public health or safety as it does not impede access to my property or any other property access, it 

also does not impede access to the existing house or any living quarters on the property. 

4. Explain below why granting the variance will not overburden public facilities or services: 
- The proposed project will have absolutely no impact on public services or facilities, it will be located in a location that will not interfere or 

complicate any public service or facility. 

5. Explain below why granting the variance will not impair the enjoyment, use or value of nearby property: 
- The proposed structure will only be visible from a couple properties and will have no impact on sight lines, usage or value of any nearby property.  

Given that the location on our property is adjacent to a gravel road and an open field, the proposed location is optimal to avoid any potential 
a�ects on neighboring property.

Sta� Analysis:

This criterion requires the Board to determine that the variance will not adversely impact nearby properties, substantially increase congestion, endanger public 
health or safety, overburden public facilities or services, or impair the enjoyment, use, or value of nearby property. The applicant's responses address each 
subpoint directly, emphasizing minimal visibility and impact due to the property's location adjacent to a gravel road and open field. 

 Adverse Impact on Nearby Properties: The applicant states the structure will be visible to only one or two neighbors and is positioned up to the right-
of-way line, which is at least 20 feet farther from the customary 33-foot distance from the road center (per county engineer). This suggests limited 
visual or physical intrusion, especially given the rural setting. 

 Substantial Increase in Congestion of People, Buildings, or Tra�ic: The applicant asserts no impact on tra�ic flow outside or on the property, noting 
the building's size, site, and location do not a�ect external or internal circulation. This is reasonable for a personal shop/building on a residential lot, 
unlikely to generate additional activity beyond typical accessory use. 

 Endangerment to Public Health or Safety: The response claims no impediment to property access, including the existing house, and no e�ect on 
other properties. Without details indicating risks (e.g., sight lines for tra�ic or emergency access), this aligns with the criterion, particularly in a low-
density spot. 

 Overburden on Public Facilities or Services: The applicant states no interference with or complication of public services/facilities. A single 
accessory structure on private property typically imposes no additional burden, supporting compliance. 

 Impairment to Enjoyment, Use, or Value of Nearby Property: Visibility is limited to a few properties, with no impact on sight lines, usage, or value, 
optimized by placement near the road and field. This minimizes aesthetic or functional disruption, meeting the intent.

REVIEW CRITERIA 2: (Section 2.02.8F1[B])

The ordinance also states that granting the variance is necessary to assure that the owner does not su�er an economic hardship. (Note: increased financial 
return or reduced costs to the applicant are not adequate cause for a finding for a hardship.)  A finding of economic hardship must be based on each of the 
following: 

6. THE PROPERTY CANNOT YIELD A REASONABLE RETURN IF USED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THIS TITLE;

7. THE PROPERTY HAS UNIQUE PHYSICAL CONSTRAINTS THAT RESULT IN ITS INABILITY TO BE USED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THIS 
TITLE; AND 

8. THE HARDSHIP IS NOT A RESULT OF ACTIONS BY THE OWNER.

Applicant Response:

6. Explain below why the property cannot yield a reasonable return without the granting of the variance:
- I have a need for a moderately sized shop/building at my residence that can only be constructed at the proposed location due to considerations 

such as existing structure (house/garage) location, the unusual triangle shape of the property, right-of-way lines (that are excessively large due to 
the curve of the gravel road and unusual shape of the property), the location of the driveway and where the “front” of the property is on Hiway 

18



275.

7. Explain below why the property has unique physical constraints that result in its inability to be used without the granting of the variance: 
- The triangle lot shape, excessively sized right-of-way(s) on both the gravel and Hiway-275, the septic field location, the well location and the 

doors, windows and “front” of the house all create the situation where the proposed location for the desired shed is the only suitable location. 

8. Explain below why the hardship is not a result of actions or decisions by the owner: 
- The house garage (except the 3rd stall) and leaching field locations were established before we purchased this residence over 30 years ago.  As 

previously explained, the unusual shape and other unique limitations of this property very much limit the suitable locations for an additional 
structure to the proposed location (which the owners have absolutely no control over). 

Sta� Analysis:

The ordinance requires findings that the property cannot yield a reasonable return without the variance, has unique physical constraints preventing compliance, 
and the hardship is not owner-created. Notably, it specifies that increased financial return or reduced costs alone are insu�icient. However, the new Iowa Code § 
335.15(4) relaxes this for dimensional variances, focusing on "practical di�iculties" in achieving a beneficial use (e.g., constructing an allowed accessory 
structure like a shop) due to special conditions, rather than strict economic deprivation. The applicant's responses frame the issue as practical constraints 
rather than financial loss, which better aligns with the updated state standard. 

 Property Cannot Yield Reasonable Return Without Variance (Ordinance Point 6): The applicant describes a need for a "moderately sized 
shop/building" that can only be sited as proposed due to existing structures, triangular lot shape, oversized right-of-ways (from road curve and 
Highway 275), driveway location, and property orientation. While not claiming financial "return" implies the property cannot be beneficially used for an 
allowed accessory purpose without relief. Under the ordinance's strict economic lens, this may fall short, as no evidence of lost value or return is 
provided. However, under the new Iowa Code, it meets the "practical di�iculties" threshold, as the variance enables a standard residential benefit 
(storage/shop) hindered by site specifics. 

 Unique Physical Constraints Preventing Compliance (Ordinance Point 7): The response highlights the triangular lot, excessive right-of-ways, septic 
field, well, and house orientation/windows/doors as creating the only viable location. These are inherent to the property (e.g., shape and infrastructure 
placement), not common, supporting uniqueness. This complies well with both the ordinance and new Code, which require "special conditions" 
unique to the site. 

 Hardship Not Result of Owner's Actions (Ordinance Point 8): The applicant notes the house, garage (mostly), and leaching field predate their 30+ 
year ownership, with the lot shape and limitations beyond their control. No self-creation is evident, satisfying this point under both standards.

REVIEW CRITERIA 3: (Section 2.02.8F2-5)

The ordinance also states that no variance shall be granted:

9. WHICH WOULD PERMIT THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A USE WITHIN A GIVEN DISTRICT WHICH IS PROHIBITED THEREIN;

10. WHICH IS SO COMMONLY RECURRING THAT IT IS A DE FACTO AMENDMENT OF THIS ORDINANCE; AND

11. THAT IS MORE THAN THE MINIMUM RELIEF NEEDED.

12. TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 5.03 RELATIVE TO FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS UNLESS THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT CONSIDERS 
THE FACTORS LISTED IN SUBSECTION 5.03-9.C (4). 

Sta� Analysis:

This criterion ensures no variance establishes a prohibited use, acts as a de facto amendment (commonly recurring), exceeds minimum relief, or violates 
floodplain rules without specific factors. 

 No Establishment of Prohibited Use (Ordinance Point 9): The proposal is for a shop/building, an accessory structure typically allowed in 
rural/residential districts (e.g., AP/AE/NR/SR per ordinance). No evidence suggests prohibition, so this is met. 

 Not Commonly Recurring (De Facto Amendment) (Ordinance Point 10): The applicant's constraints (triangular lot, curved road right-of-way, pre-
existing infrastructure) are site-specific, not a pattern that would undermine the ordinance (e.g., routine setback waivers). Compliance is evident. 

 No More Than Minimum Relief Needed (Ordinance Point 11): The request is for placement up to the right-of-way, described as the only suitable 
spot.  

 Floodplain Provisions (Ordinance Point 12): Inapplicable, this is satisfied; otherwise, Section 5.03 factors would apply.

19



LEGAL NOTIFICATION FOR BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT PUBLIC HEARING

20



PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Property Owners within 500 Feet: 39

Notification Letter Date: January 16, 2026

Public Hearing Board: Board of Adjustment

Public Hearing Date: February 2, 2026

Phone Inquiries: 0

Written Inquiries: 1. See Written Statement(s) Below.

The names of the property owners are listed below.  

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS

Robert Eugene Dandurand 101 Jay Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Mark R. Larkin and Lori A. 
Larkin

104 Bigelow Park 
Road

Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Rene McDermott 104 Jay Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Richard E. Dandurand, II and 
Alyssa E. Dandurand

105 Jay Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Kevin L. Morton 108 Bigelow Park 
Road

Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Robert Pederson and 
Suzanne Mason-Pederson

108 Jay Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Michelle Leisey 112 Bigelow Park 
Road

Salix IA 51052 No comments.

George E. Dandurand and 
Joann E. Dandurand

113 Jay Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Justin Oehm and Sara L. 
Bresnahan

114 Bigelow Park 
Road

Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Gehling Consulting, LLC 115 Bigelow Park 
Road

Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Alan R. J. Mast 116 Bigelow Park 
Road

Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Tyler J. Hubert 121 Burdick Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Daniel B. Goodwin and 
Susan Goodwin

125 Burdick Street Salix IA 51052-
8132

No comments.

Ryan D. Waite and Michelle 
Ann Waite

126 Nimrod Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Michael Duane Porter, 
Trustee

129 Burdick Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Ryan Willis and Lisa Willis 131 Nimrod Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Lynn M. Towne 133 Burdick Street Salix IA 51052-
8079

No comments.

Larry J. Schopp and B. Jeanne 
Schopp

134 Nimrod Street Salix IA 51052-
8048

No comments.

Christopher J. Case and Julie 
M. Case

137 Nimrod Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Cassandra Lichtenberg and 
Donald Lichtenberg

138 Nimrod Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Kevin D. Alons and Ngu Alons 140 Galland Street Salix IA 51052-
8101

No comments.

Robert B. Ankerstjerne 1401 275th Street Salix IA 51052-
8025

No comments.

Robin Thompson and 
Jeremiah Thompson

1402 280th Street Salix IA 51052-
8026

No comments.

Donavan B. Thompson and 
Jennifer J. Thompson

141 Burdick Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Lance R. Larson 141 Nimrod Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Kerry A. Abel and Judy K. Abel 1410 275th Street Salix IA 51052-
8026

No comments.

Amber Pomranky 1415 280th Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

William P. Walker and Penny 
A. Walker

1417 280th Street Salix IA 51052-
2084

No comments.

Jerry B. Gengler and Joan M. 
Gengler

1419 280th Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Jean L. Sathre and Steven L. 
Sathre

142 Nimrod Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

21



Steven M. Petersen and 
Kathleen M. Petersen

145 Burdick Street Salix IA 51052-
8132

No comments.

Clint M. Lamb and Emily S. 
Lamb

145 Nimrod Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Gaylen Lee Baker and Peggy 
Rose Baker

146 Nimrod Street Salix IA 51052-
8108

No comments.

Logan Ernst 149 Nimrod Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Scott D. Limoges and Patricia 
Ruth Limoges

150 Nimrod Street Salix IA 51052-
8108

No comments.

John L. Nelson and Jeri J. 
Nelson

153 Nimrod Street Salix IA 51052-
8109

No comments.

Daniel J. Hartley and Sally E. 
Hartley

154 Nimrod Street Salix IA 51052 No comments.

Lane M. Jorgensen and 
Lucinda L. Jorgensen and 
Leonard and Patricia J. 
Jorgensen as Trustees of the 
Joint Revocable Trust of 
Leonard D. Jorgensen and 
Patricia J. Jorgensen

2354 Port Neal Road Sgt. Bluff IA 51054 No comments.

Estate of Neva J. Bean, 
Thomas Bean, as Executor

8356 Hunter Brook 
St.

Las Vegas NV 8913-
68269

No comments.

22



STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS

911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.

CITY OF SALIX We have no comments to add. Thank you for sharing this information with Salix! – City Clerk’s 
Office, 1/15/26. 

FIBERCOMM: No comments.

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments.

LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments.

LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments.

LONGLINES: No comments.

LUMEN: No comments.

MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the following variance application for MEC electric and the parcel is outside our 
service territory; we have no comment. – Casey Meinen, 1/13/26. 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments.

NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.

NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.

NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed the variance application from Kevin Alons. NIPCO has no issues with this 
variance. – Jeff Zettel, 1/14/26. 

NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments.

SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments.

WIATEL: No comments.

WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.

WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.

WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: No comments.

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments.

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments.

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this request. – Neil Stockfleth, 1/13/26.

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: No comments.

23



PARCEL REPORT

24



25



26



PICTOMETRY IMAGERY

ELEVATION

27



COUNTY ZONING MAP

28



SOIL MAP

29



30



SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA)

The property is not located within the floodplain.

31



32



VARIANCE REGULATIONS FROM THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE (Pages 18-20)

1. Variances 

A. Authority.  The Board of Adjustment shall hear and decide on requests for a variance pursuant to subsection 2.01-5. D subject to the procedures, 
standards and conditions set out in this subsection and Section 335 of the Iowa Code. 

B. Purpose.  A variance is intended to provide necessary relief from the requirements of the zoning provisions of this title that would create 
unnecessary hardships or practical di�iculties.  

C. Filing.   

(1) Right to seek variance.  A request for a zoning variance may be filed by any person aggrieved by a provision of the zoning ordinance that 
limits their intended use of property. 

(2) Form of application.  An application for a variance shall be submitted to the zoning director and shall include at least the following 
information:  

(a) The name and address of the property owner and the applicant; 

(b) The address, if any, and the legal description of the property; 

(c) The current zoning district classification; 

(d) A specific description of the proposed variance including the section of this title from which a variance is requested; 

(e) A map, drawn to scale, showing the subject property, all structures and other improvements, with the proposed variance 
identified; 

(f) Statements in response to the criteria and standards for approval of variances in subsection 2.02-8. F (1) below. 

(3) Fee.  A filing fee, as established by resolution of the Board of Supervisors to defray administrative costs, shall accompany the notice of 
appeal.  

(4) A certified abstractor’s listing of the names and mailing addresses of all owners of real property lying adjacent to the subject property. 

D. Stay of Proceedings. A request for a variance appeal shall have the e�ect of a temporary suspension of enforcement of the provisions of these 
regulations that are the subject of the variance request until the conclusion of the variance process, unless the zoning director certifies that the 
suspension may cause imminent peril to life or property. 

E. Review and decision-making process.  

(1) Hearing required. The Board of Adjustment shall conduct a public hearing on the variance request in accordance with subsection 2.02-1. 
B. 

(2) Notification.  Public notification of the Board of Adjustment hearing on the variance request shall be as required by subsection 2.02-1. 
B(1).  Such notices shall provide information on the time, date and location of the hearing and a brief description of the requested 
variance. 

(3) Decision.  Within 10 days after the public hearing the Board of Adjustment shall approve, approve with conditions or limitations, or deny 
the requested variance.  The Board of Adjustment shall set forth findings of fact addressing the points enumerated in subsection 2.02-8. 
F(1) below as a basis for its action.  

F. Requirements for variances:   

(1) In order to grant a variance, the Board of Adjustment must determine that: 

(a) Granting the variance will not be contrary to the public interest or the general intent and purpose of this title in that it: 

(i) Adversely impacts nearby properties; 

(ii) Substantially increases congestion of people, buildings or tra�ic;

(iii) Endangers public health or safety; 

(iv) Overburdens public facilities or services; or 

(v) Impairs the enjoyment, use or value of nearby property. 

(b) Granting the variance is necessary to assure that the owner does not su�er an economic hardship.  (Note: Increased financial
return or reduced costs to the applicant are not adequate cause for a finding of hardship.)  A finding of economic hardship must 
be based on each of the following: 

(i) The property cannot yield a reasonable return if used in compliance with the requirements of this title;  

33



(ii) The property has unique physical constraints that result in its inability to be used in compliance with the requirements 
of this title; and  

(iii) The hardship is not a result of actions by the owner.  

(2) No variance shall be granted which would permit the establishment of a use within a given district which is prohibited therein; 

(3) No variance shall be granted which is so commonly recurring that it is a de facto amendment of this ordinance; and 

(4) No variance shall be granted that is more than the minimum relief needed.  

(5) No variance shall be granted to the provisions of Section 5.03 relative to flood plain management requirements unless the Board of 
Adjustment considers the factors listed in subsection 5.03-9.C (4). 

G. Conditional approval of variances.  The Board of Adjustment may, as a condition related to approval of a variance, impose restrictions and 
safeguards upon the property and the variance granted if it determines the restrictions to be necessary to minimize adverse e�ects on other 
property or the public interest.  Such conditions shall be set forth in the resolution of the Board of Adjustment granting the variance.  Failure to 
comply with any conditions imposed on a variance approval is a violation of this title. 

H. Appeal of the actions of the Board of Adjustment.  Any interested party may appeal a variance decision of the Board of Adjustment in two ways. 

(1) If the Board of Adjustment approves a variance, the Board of Supervisors pursuant to Section 335.10 of the Iowa Code may remand the 
matter to the Board of Adjustment for further consideration at any time within 30 days.   

(2) Any aggrieved party may appeal a decision of the Board of Adjustment within 30 days as provided by Section 335.18 of the Iowa Code.  
Such an appeal suspends the e�ect of the action of the Board of Adjustment until the appeal has been resolved.  Any construction or 
cost incurred during the period subject to appeal is at the risk of the applicant. 

SEE THE STATE OF IOWA’S CHANGES TO THE VARIANCE REQUIREMENTS BELOW: 

34



35



36



37




